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Bef ore: Judge Koutras
Statement of the Proceedi ngs

These consol i dat ed dockets concern petitions for assessnent
of civil penalties filed by the petitioner against the respondent
pursuant to section 110(a) of the Federal Mne Safety and Heal th
Act of 1977, 30 U.S.C. 820(a), seeking penalty assessnents for a
total of 176 alleged violations of certain mandatory safety and
heal th standards pronul gated pursuant to the Act.

Respondent filed answers and contests to the civil penalty
proposal s, and pursuant to an agreenent by the parties, all of
t he dockets were consolidated for hearing in Charleston, West
Virginia, during the term
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May 18-19, 1982. The parties were afforded a full opportunity to
present oral arguments concerning their respective positions, and
they waived the filing of any posthearing briefs and/ or proposed

findi ngs and concl usi ons.

| ssues

The issues presented in these proceedings are (1) whether
respondent has violated the provisions of the Act and
i npl enenting regulations as alleged in the proposals for
assessnment of civil penalty filed, and, if so, (2) the
appropriate civil penalty that should be assessed agai nst the
respondent for each alleged violation based upon the criteria set
forth in section 110(i) of the Act. In these proceedings, the
cruci al question presented is whether or not the assessnent of
civil penalties against the respondent for the violations in
guestion will have an adverse inpact on its ability to remain in
busi ness.

In determ ning the anmount of a civil penalty assessment,
section 110(i) of the Act requires consideration of the foll ow ng
criteria: (1) the operator's history of previous violations, (2)
t he appropriateness of such penalty to the size of the business
of the operator, (3) whether the operator was negligent, (4) the
effect on the operator's ability to continue in business, (5) the
gravity of the violation, and (6) the denonstrated good faith of
the operator in attenpting to achi eve rapid conpliance after
notification of the violation

Applicable Statutory and Regul atory Provi sions

1. The Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, Pub. L.
95-164, 30 U.S.C. 0801 et seq.

2. Section 110(i) of the 1977 Act, 30 U.S.C. [1820(i).
3. Commission Rules, 29 CF.R [02700.1 et seq.

Sti pul ations
The parties stipulated to the foll ow ng:

1. The respondent is the owner and operator of the
Marie No. 1 Mne and both are subject to the provisions
of the Act.

2. The Administrative Law Judge has jurisdiction to
hear and deci de these dockets pursuant to the Act.

3. Al of the citations issued to the respondent in

t hese consol i dated dockets, including any term nations,
abatements, or nodifications, were properly served on

t he respondent by duly authorized representatives of
the petitioner, and all copies of the citations in
guestion in these proceedi ngs which are attached to and
made a part of the proposals for assessnent of civil



penalties are authentic copies of the original
citations duly served on the respondent or its agents.
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4. The respondent is a small coal nine operator producing
87,251 production tons of coal annually, when the Marie No.
1 Mne is operating.

5. The Marie No. 1 Mne is not currently produci ng
coal

Except for three dockets in which testinony was taken
concerning the fact of violations, the parties stipulated as to
the fact of violations in the remaining cases. They also
stipulated as to the civil penalty criteria found in section
110(i) of the Act as to each of the violations, and these
stipulations are discussed at the appropriate places indicated in
these decisions. |In addition, the parties are in agreenent that
none of the citations which were issued in these proceedi ngs
concern fatalities, injuries, or accidents involving mners or
equi prrent .

Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons
Docket No. WEVA 80-565
Fact of Violations

Thi s docket concerns 14 viol ations served on the respondent
i n Decenber 1979, and March 1980. Two were issued for failure to
properly insul ate power cables; two for failure to guard a belt
conveyor; four for failure to record results of weekly electrica
exam nations; and the remai ni ng ones for niscellaneous
i nfracti ons concerning ventilation, an inoperative nethane
monitor, and failure to designate stationary equi pmrent on a nine
map. The parties stipulated that all of the violations occurred,
and they are all AFFI RVED

Gavity

The record establishes that the gravity and probability of
harm occurring as a result of all of the citations, with the
exception of Citations 677862, 677863, 673591, 673592, ranged
fromlow to noderate. As for the four citations noted, the
parties stipulated that they were all serious infractions.

Negl i gence

The record reflects that all of the citations, except for
677861, resulted fromthe respondent's failure to exercise
reasonabl e care, and that all of these violations constitute
ordinary negligence. Wth regard to Citation No. 677861, the
parties have stipulated that the negligence was | ow because
previ ous inspections had not reveal ed any problens with the
i noperative methane nonitor which was cited.

Good faith conpliance

The record reflects that the respondent denonstrated
extraordi nary good faith conpliance concerning Ctations 677798,



677799, 677861, 677862, and 677863 in that correction and
abatenent of the cited conditions was
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achieved imedi ately. As for the remaining citations, the
respondent achi eved conpliance by abating the conditions within
the tine fixed by the inspectors.

Hi story of prior violations

For purposes of this docket, the parties stipulated that
respondent has no history of prior violations of section 75.313,
75.300-4(a), 77.508, or 77.502-2. One prior violation of
sections 75.517, 75.703, and 77.800-2 are noted; as well as five
prior citations of 75.1722, eight for violations of 75.1722, four
for violations of section 75.200, and two for section 75.512.

Docket No. VEVA 81-106
Fact of Violations

Thi s docket concerns 16 citations served on the respondent
during April and May 1980. Three were issued for failure to keep
records of examinations made in the mne; two were for inproper
fittings on power cables; three concerned pernmissibility
vi ol ati ons on m ning equipnent; two were guarding violations for
failure to guard machine parts; two were for failure to provide
adequate fire suppression devices on a shuttle car and roof
bolter; and the remaining ones were for mscell aneous el ectrica
violations. The parties stipulated that the violations occurred,
and all of the citations are AFFI RVED

Gavity

None of the violations were deened to be serious. The
gravity and probability of harmoccurring with respect to all of
the citations ranged fromnmediumto |ow, and citations 910981
910982, and 910983 were deened to be technical recordkeeping
i nfractions.

Negl i gence

Al of the citations with the exception of six, resulted
fromthe respondent's failure to exercise reasonabl e care.
Citations 910981, 910984, 910986, 910990, 910992, and 910994 al
constituted | ow degrees of negligence in that sone of the cited
conditions were not readily apparent or occurred through
i nadvertence. In any event, all of the citations in question
resulted fromordinary negligence by the respondent.

Good faith conpliance

Wth regard to Gitations 910989, 910990, 910992, the record
est abl i shes that respondent exhibited extraordinary conpliance in
that the cited conditions were inmedi ately corrected and abat ed.
As for the remaining citations, respondent exhibited good faith
conpliance by pronptly correcting the conditions.
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Hi story of prior violations

For purposes of this docket, the parties stipulated that the
respondent had no prior violations of section 75.305, 75.1722(a),
and 75.605; 11 prior citations of section 75.400; six for section
75.303; five for section 75.515; three for section 75.701; seven
for section 75.503; four for section 75.604; and one citation of
75.1107.

Docket No. WEVA 81-249
Fact of violations

Two of the citations were issued for accunul ati ons of coa
dust and small anmounts of oil on equi pnrent, one was for failure
to follow the ventilation plan in that 8 permanent stoppings
needed repairs, one for failure to guard a belt drive, one for an
i nadequat e et hane nonitor on a continuous m ni ng machi ne, and
one for failure to adequately rock dust the roof. The citations
are all AFFI RVED

Gavity

The gravity and the probability of harm occurring as a
result of all of the citations ranged fromvery |low to noderate
The repairs needed for the stoppings were mnor, the m ning
machi ne was perm ssi bl e, was not overheated, and was equi pped
with operative fire fighting equipnent, the mne floor was rock
dusted, no methane was detected in the mne, and no ignition
sources were present in the areas where the accunul ati ons were
observed.

Negl i gence

Ctations 910319, 911658, 911659, and 911660 all resulted
froma | ow degree of negligence on the part of the respondent in
that the conditions cited were either beyond the control of the
respondent or were not readily detectable. The remaining
citations resulted fromordi nary negligence.

Good faith conpliance

Respondent denonstrated extraordi nary good faith in abating
the accumul ations citation by i mediately stopping production
until the condition was corrected, and i medi ately repairing the
conti nuous m ni ng machi ne met hane nonitor. The remnaining
citations were abated within the tine fixed by the inspector

Hi story of prior violations
Respondent has a history of eight prior violations of

sections 75.316, and 75.400, and no history of prior citation of
the other sections cited in this docket.
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Docket No. WEVA 81-377

Fact of Violations

Al four of these citations resulted fromthe failure by the
respondent to submit required respirable dust sanples for certain
areas of the mne. They are all AFFI RVED
Gavity

The gravity and probability of harmoccurring as a result of
all of the violations described in the Citations were |ow in that

failure to submt the sanples of the areas for the bi-nmonthly
peri ods, would not per se be likely to lead to harmto an

enpl oyee.
Negl i gence

Al of the citations constituted ordi nary negligence in that
the respondent failed to exercise reasonable care in insuring
that the required sanples were submitted
Good faith conpliance

The respondent was unable to abate the violations since the
bi -monthly sanpling period had passed. Accordingly, no abatenent
was required.

Hi story of prior violations

The respondent has a history of one violation for 30 C F. R
70. 207(a) .

Docket No. WEVA 81-429
Fact of Violation

The violation issued after the inspector observed scaling of
the roof in a portion of the track area of the mne. The
citation is AFFI RMVED
Gavity

The gravity and the probability of any harmresulting from
the cited condition were noderate

Negl i gence

The violation resulted froma | ow degree of negligence in
that the deterioration observed by the inspector cannot be
control l ed by the operator.

Good faith conpliance

The respondent denonstrated ordi nary good faith conpliance
by correcting the condition within the tinme specified by the



i nspect or.
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Hi story of prior violations

Respondent has no history of prior violations of section
75. 205.

Docket No. WEVA 81-449
Fact of Violations

One citation concerns the failure by the respondent to
mai ntain a roof bolter in perm ssible condition. The remnaining
four were issued because the respondent failed to submt
respirabl e dust sanples for certain designated sanpling cycles.
They are all AFFI RVED

Gavity

The gravity concerning the roof bolter citation was m ninal
since no nethane was present in the area and the probability of
harm was renote since only one bolt was m ssing on the machi ne.
The gravity connected with the sanpling citations was | ow since
it was inprobable that any exposure to dust during the sanpling
cycle could result in any harm

Good faith conmpliance and negli gence.

The respondent denonstrated extraordi nary good faith
abatement to achi eve conpliance regarding the pernmissibility
citation in that power was i medi ately renmpoved fromthe nachi ne
and it was repaired. Wth regard to the sanpling citations, no
abat ement was required since the sanpling period had passed. All
of the citations resulted from ordi nary negligence.

Hi story of prior violations

For purposes of this docket, the parties stipulated that the
respondent has a history of five prior violations of section
75.503; one prior violation of section 70.207(a); and three prior
vi ol ati ons of section 208(a).

Docket No. WEVA 81-457
Fact of Violations

Thi s docket concerns 20 citations issued to the respondent
during Novenmber and Decenber 1980. Five were issued for
i noperative fire sensor alarns on the conveyor belt line; tw
were for inoperative water deluge systens; four were for the
failure to record the results of certain preshift and on-shift
exam nations; three for failure to renove conbusti bl es (grass,
weeds, and oil cans) found near certain equi pnment; four were
electrical violations for inproper fittings and bushings on
cables; and two were roof control violations for inproper roof
bolts and failure to provide an approved torque wench. The
parties stipulation that all of the violations occurred, and the
citations are all AFFI RVED.
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Gavity

The gravity and probability of harmoccurring as to all of
the citations ranged fromlow to noderate.

Negl i gence

None of the violations in question resulted from gross
negl i gence by the respondent, and all of the conditions or
practices cited were the result of |ow or ordinary negligence.

Good faith conpliance

Wth regard to 11 of the citations, respondent denonstrated
extra-ordinary good faith conpliance by i mediately correcting
the conditions and abating the violations.al As for the
ot hers, abatenment was achi eved through pronpt corrections of the
conditions within the time fixed by the inspectors.

Hi story of prior violations

For purposes of this docket, the record reflects that the
respondent has no prior citations for violations of sections
75.323 75.1103-8(b), 75.305, 75.901(a), and 75.1101-3. Two prior
citations are reflected for section 75.512, four for sections
75.515 and 75.200, one each for 77.504 and 75.1103, and ei ght
prior violations of section 75.400.

Docket No. VEVA 81-458
Fact of violations

Thi s docket concerns twenty citations served on the
respondent during Decenber 1980, and January and February 1981
The citations were issued for a variety of infractions dealing
with accunul ati ons of conbustible materials, violations of the
m ne ventilation plan, inproper fittings on power cables, failure
to have an up-to-date nmine map, the existence of stunbling
hazards in a surface shop, an unsafe roof bolter, storage of
conpressed gas cylinders in an outside shop area w thout proper
val ve covers, lack of insulation and proper bushings on certain
power cables, failure to record examnation results in an
approved book, failure to |l ock a gate on a power substation, and
t he accumul ations of conbustibles on certain m ne equipnment. All
of the conditions or practices cited are a matter of record, and
the parties stipulated that the violations did in fact occur
Accordingly, all of the citations are AFFI RVED

Gavity

The parties stipulated that Citations 918006, 918008,
918009, 876570, and 910293 were all serious violations. They
al so stipulated that that the gravity connected with the
remaining citations were in four cases mnimal, and as to the
others the gravity was low or null, and that these were al
nonserious infractions.
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Negl i gence

The parties agreed that G tations No. 912395 and 912396 were
the result of no negligence on the part of the respondent. They
al so agreed that G tations 918322 and 918324 t hrough 918328
resulted froma | ow degree of negligence on the part of the
respondent, and that the remaining citations resulted from
ordinary negligence. | conclude and find that except for the
citations indicating no negligence, the remnaining violations
denonstrated a | ack of reasonable care and therefore constitute
ordi nary negligence.

Good faith conpliance

The parties stipulated that the respondent denonstrated
extraordi nary good faith conpliance by i mediately correcting the
conditions cited in Citations 918008 and 918328. As for the
remai ning citations, they agreed that the respondent pronptly
corrected the conditions and achi eved abatement within the tine
franes specified by the inspectors.

Hi story of prior violations

For the purposes of this docket, the parties stipul ated that
the respondent has a history of 14 prior violations of section
75.400; two for section 75.1104; three for section 75.1101-3;
four for section 75.1725; five for section 75.701; 13 for section
75.316; six for section 77.505; three for section 75.1200; five
for section 75.504; six for section 75.212; three for section
77.502; and no prior citations of sections 75.1725(2), 75.1400-4,
77.205(b), 77.509(c), and 77.208(e).

Docket No. WEVA 81-459
Fact of Violations

Thi s docket concerns 20 citations issued to the respondent
on February 17 and 24, 1981. Two citations concern an
i noperative nethane nonitor on a continuous m ning machi ne; four
are pernmssibility violations concerning | oose bolts in a roof
bolter panel, a |l oose light, and inproper openings in a pane
box; three are for accunul ati ons of conbustible materials on a
bolter and in the roadway; three concern inproper bushings on a
cabl e and broken conduit; two are for inproper identification for
a belt head and a m ner power connector; one was issued for a
di sconnected fire suppressi on systemon a scoop; one for an
i noperative deenergi zing device on a scoop; and two were issued
because of a nissing wheel cover and a bolt on a scoop. The
parties stipulated to the fact of violations, and all of the
citations are AFFI RVED.

Gavity
The parties stipulated that two of the citations (917629,

917636), were serious. Eight of the remaining citations were
nonserious, with a |l ow degree of gravity in that it was



i nprobabl e that any injuries would result, and the remnaining
citations were of a mninmal degree of gravity.
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Negl i gence

The parties stipulated that Ctations 917622, 918337,
918338, 918339, 918340, and 917627 were the result on no
negl i gence on the part of the respondent. They agreed that
Citation No. 917630, concerning accumnul ati ons along the entire
mantrip roadway for a distance of 8,650 feet resulted from
respondent's "extreme negligence” but that no ignition sources
were present. Further, they stipulated that the remnaining
citations were the result of respondent's failure to exercise
reasonabl e care, and that this constitutes ordi nary negligence.

Good faith conpliance

The record reflects that the respondent denonstrated nornal
good faith conpliance in pronptly correcting the cited conditions
within the tine fixed by the inspectors in all but one citation.
That citation, No. 917631, was abated through rapid conpliance by
t he respondent.

Hi story of prior violations

For purposes of this docket, the parties stipulated that the
respondent has no prior citations for violations of sections
75.1107-16(b) or 75.523-2(c); 17 prior citations of section
75.400; two citations of sections 75.313 and 75.904; three
citations of section 75.515; and one citation of section
75.1725(a).

Docket No. 81-460
Fact of violations

| take note of the fact that Citation No. 917642, February
24, 1981, was assessed at "zero" by MSHA' s assessnent office, and
a notation on the pleadings filed by the petitioner reflects that
the citation was subsequently vacated. Under the circunstances,
this citation is dismssed.

Wth regard to the remaining 19 citations issued in this
docket, the record reflects that three were guarding citations
for failure to provide adequate guards for equi pnent; ten
concerned m scel l aneous citations for failure to properly
i nsul ate power cables, inproper cable bushings, and failure to
install power cables on proper insulators; two were for failure
to provide fire extinguishers; two were for inproper electrica
guardi ng devices; and one for failure to vent a battery chargi ng
station. The parties stipulated that all of the violations
occurred, and the citations are all AFFI RVED

Gavity
The record reflects that the gravity and probability of harm

occurring as a result of all of the citations which have been
affirmed in this docket ranged fromlow to noderate
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Negl i gence

Wth the exception of Citation No. 917651, the record
establishes that all of the remaining citations constituted
ordi nary negligence and resulted fromthe respondent's failure to
exerci se reasonable care. Wth regard to citation 917651, the
record reflects that the negligence was | ow i nasmuch as the cited
| oose cabl e bushing resulted frominadvertent machi ne vibration

Good faith conpliance

Wth regard to Gitation No. 917639, respondent denonstrated
extraordi nary good faith conpliance by i medi ately renoving power
fromthe equi pnent and repairing the cable insulation. The sane
applies for Citations 917640 and 917643, where the respondent
i medi ately renoved the equi pnment fromservice and installed a
guard on the feeder coupler, and i mediately placed an
identification tag on the cat head. As for the remaining
citations, the record establishes that the respondent
denonstrated good faith conmpliance by correcting all of the cited
conditions and practices within the tines specified by the
i nspectors.

Hi story of prior violations

For purposes of this docket, the parties stipulated that
respondent has four prior violations of section 75.515, one prior
citation of section 75.807, and no prior citations for the
remai ni ng cited mandat ory standar ds.

Docket No. WEVA 81-461
Fact of Violations

Citation No. 917753, March 6, 1981, citing 30 CFR 75. 515,
was vacated by MSHA on June 1, 1981, after conpletion of a
further investigation

Wth regard to the remaining 19 viol ations, four were issued
for inadequate guards on belt conveyor pulleys; eleven were for
i mproper notor cable bushings, |ack of insulators on cables, and
failure to guard power cables; two were for missing bolts on a
nmotor and a scoop; one for failure to provide a good fire
ext i ngui sher on a belt conveyor; and one roof control violation
for | oose roof bolts. The parties stipulated that all of the
violations occurred, and all of the citations are AFFI RVED

Gavity

Except for citations 917750, 917751, 917755, and 917761,
which the parties agreed were serious, the gravity regardi ng 15
of the remaining citations was | ow, and one invol ved noderate
gravity. Al of these concerned inprobabl e nonserious hazards.
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Negl i gence

Al of the citations were the result of respondent's failure
to exerci se reasonable care, and they all constitute ordinary
negl i gence.

Good faith conpliance

Respondent corrected all of the cited conditions within the
time fixed for abatenment, and denonstrated ordi nary good faith
conpliance as to all of the violations.

Hi story of prior violations

The record reflects six prior citations of section
75.1725(a); 10 prior violations of section 75.515; four citations
for section 75.1722(a); six for section 75.506; seven for section
75.517; five for section 75.807; 16 for section 75.200; and no
prior citations for violations of sections 75.516.2(c) or
75.1100.2(e)(1).

Docket No. WEVA 81-462
Fact of violations

Two of the citations were issued for coal dust accunul ations
along the belt head, one for failure to provide a proper bushing
for a switch power cable, one for failure to guard a tail piece
roller, one for failure to adequately support the roof along the
track sl ope, and one for failure to provide a bunper block at the
raw coal dump. Al of the citations are AFFI RVED

Gavity

The gravity and the probability of harmoccurring a result
of five of the citations ranged fromlow to noderate. No nethane
was detected in the areas of the coal accumnulations, but the
presence of an ignition source could have resulted in a fire.

The roof support violation was serious in that the existing roof
bolts were not providing adequate roof support and someone coul d
have been seriously injured had a roof fall occurred.

Negl i gence

Al of the citations resulted fromordi nary negligence on
the part of the respondent.

Good faith conpliance

Respondent denonstrated good faith conpliance as to four of
the citations by abating the conditions within the tine fixed by
the inspector. Regarding the bunper block citation, respondent
denonstrated extraordinary efforts to conply by inmedi ately
installing a bunper at the raw coal dunp.



~1180
Hi story of prior violations

Respondent has a history of 18 prior violations of section
75.400, 10 prior violations of section 75.515, four violations of
section 75.1722(a), 16 violations of section 75.200, and one
prior violation of section 77.1605(1).

Docket No. VEVA 81-506
Fact of violations

One of the citations was issued for failure to provide fuse
protection on a piston punp at the slope bottom and a second one
was issued for failure to provide a fire extinguisher in the
mai nt enance shop. These are both AFFI RVED

Gavity

The degree of gravity with regard to both citations was
noder at e

Negl i gence

Both citations resulted fromthe respondent's failure to
exerci se reasonable care, and this constitutes ordi nary
negl i gence.

Good faith conpliance

Respondent denonstrated extraordi nary conpliance by
i mediately providing a fire extinguisher for the shop, and by
promptly providing fuse protection for the punp in question

Hi story of prior violations

Respondent has a history of two prior violations of section
77.506, and one prior violation of section 77.1109(a).

Docket No WEVA 81-601
Fact of violation

Thi s docket concerns Citation No. 911888, issued on June 2,
1981 for a violation of 30 CFR 75.316, for failure by the
respondent to submit an annual review of a ventilation plan to
MSHA. The parties agreed that a violation occurred, and the
citation is therefore AFFI RVED.

Gavity

The parties stipulated that i nasnuch as the respondent did
in fact have an effective ventilation plan at the tine the
citation issued, the fact that it failed to submt a copy to MsSHA
had a minimal gravity level, and the violation was not
significant or substanti al
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Negl i gence

The parties are in agreenent that the violation resulted
fromordi nary negligence on the part of the respondent.

Good faith conpliance

The plan was subsequently submitted to MSHA for review
within the tine allotted by the inspector. Therefore, the
respondent denonstrated good faith conpliance.

Hi story of prior violations

The parties stipulated that the respondent has a history of
ei ght prior violations of section 75.316.

Docket No. WEVA 82-25
Fact of violations

Thi s docket concerns eight citations served on the
respondent during the period May through August 1981. Three
citations were issued for failure by the respondent to submt
respirabl e dust sanples for certain sanpling periods; one was
i ssued for inadequate rock dusting; one for permtting
conbustible materials to accunulate; one for failure to install a
power cable on insulators; one for having shields off a battery
car and the batteries were cracked; and one for failing to
mai ntain a second floor travelway safe in that a fl oor board was
m ssing, thereby exposing a hole. The parties stipulated that al
of the violations occurred, and therefore, the citations are
AFFI RVED

Gavity

The parties agreed that none of the citations were
significant or substantial, and that the gravity or probability
of harmoccurring as a result of the violations was m ni nmal or
noder at e

Negl i gence

The record establishes that all of the citations resulted
fromthe respondent's failure to take ordinary care, and that
this anobunts to ordinary negligence.

Good faith conpliance

Wth regard to the respirable dust citations, the parties
stipul ated that abatenent could not be achi eved since the
sanmpling cycle had passed at the tine the citations issued. As
for the remaining citations, the parties stipul ated that
respondent denonstrated ordi nary good faith conpliance by
correcting all of the conditions cited by the inspectors within
the tinme fixed for abatenent.
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Hi story of prior violations

For purposes of this docket, the parties stipulated that the
respondent has a history of 18 prior violations of section
75.400; seven prior violations of section 75.750 and 75.1725(a);
one prior violation of section 77.205(a); and six prior
vi ol ati ons of section 70.208(a).

Docket No. VEVA 82-24
Fact of violations

Thi s docket concerns four citations issued to the respondent
i n Decenber 1980, for (1) failure to submt an escape and
evacuation plan to MSHA, (2) failure to submt a plan for
energency nedi cal assistance, (3) failure to provide a
deener gi zati on device on a machine, and (4) failure to provide
adequate illumnation in |ocations of the preparation plant. The
parties stipulated that the violations occurred, and therefore
all of the citations are AFFI RVED.

Gavity

The parties stipulated that Ctation No. 918012 was serious,
but that the probability of harmoccurring as a result of the
remaining three citations was mnimal or noderate.

Negl i gence

Al of the citations resulted fromthe respondent's failure
to exerci se reasonable care, and this amounts to ordi nary
negl i gence.

Hi story of prior violations

The parties agreed that for purposes of this docket,
respondent has a history of no prior citations of sections
75.1101-23(a), 75.1713, or 77.207, and three prior violations of
section 75.523.

Docket No. WEVA 81-504

Thi s docket concerns a section 107(a) inmm nent danger order
i ssued by MSHA I nspector Edward M Tol er, on Decenber 9, 1980,
chargi ng the respondent with an alleged violation of mandatory
safety standard 30 CFR 77.701, for failure to properly ground a
water punp (Ex. P-1). In support of the violation, NMSHA
presented the testinony of |Inspector Toler. He confirned that he
i nspected the mne on the day in question and that he issued the
citation after determning that the frame ground wire on the punp
was not connected to a ground. The condition was detected after
he observed sl ate picker Fred Brewer being shocked from
contacting the punp. M. Brewer stated that he had received a
shock fromthe punp when he attenpted to prinme it, and the punp
was being used to punp water to the tipple. A conpany
el ectrician acconpanying himon the inspection confirmed the



vi ol ati on and di scovered that the ground was not connected. The
el ectrician advised himthat he was not
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aware of the condition, and M. Toler stated that he could find
no evidence that the nonthly electrical exam nations had been
made, but he conceded that mine operator Davis was not at the
m ne. The inspector conceded that such exam nations are
general |y conducted by visual exam nations rather than the

di smantling of the equipnment. The inspector confirned that
abat ement was achi eved within 45 mnutes or an hour of the

i ssuance of the order (Tr. 8-24).

M ne owner and operator Wnford Davis testified in defense
of the citation. He testified that the problemw th the punp was
not with the grounding unit, but rather, with the power cable
comng to the punp ground. He was unaware of the fact that the
ground wire had come | oose, but conceded that the slate picker
advi sed himof a "slight shock”™ when he touched the punp. The
condition was abated in a matter of mnutes, and he has qualified
electricians on the site to take care of such problenms. He had
no know edge of the condition because it could not be detected by
vi sual exam nation, but he acknow edged that nonthly checks were
requi red, and he surm zed that this was being done. M. Davis
al so alluded to some problens with the | ocal power conpany's
power system (Tr. 24-37).

Fact of violation

Upon consideration of the testinony concerning this
violation, | conclude and find that MSHA has established a
violation of the cited mandatory safety standard. Section
77.701, requires the grounding of nmetallic franes, casings, and
ot her encl osures of electric equipnment. 1 conclude that the
testinmony of the inspector established that the water punp in
guesti on was not properly grounded, and that this constitutes a
violation of the cited standard. Accordingly, Ctation No.
918017 i s AFFI RVED

Gavity

I conclude and find that this citation was extremely
dangerous. The slate picker in question was observed receiving a
shock fromthe water punp which was not properly grounded. M ne
operator Davis confirmed that the slate picker had advised him
that he was "slightly shocked” when he touched the punp.

However, what may be a "slight shock” one day may well be a fata
one the next.

Negl i gence

I conclude and find that the conditions cited as a violation
shoul d have been detected by the mne through the required
electrical inspections. Wile it may be true that the condition
was caused by a | oose ground wire which was not readily
observabl e, testing of the equipnment during the required
exam nations woul d probably have revealed the cited condition
Under the circunstances, | conclude that the respondent failed to
exerci se reasonabl e care and was negligent.
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Good faith abat enent

The condition was corrected in sone 45 mnutes after the
i ssuance of the withdrawal order, and conpliance was achi eved by
reconnecting the | oose ground wire.

Hi story of prior violations

The solicitor stated that for the 24 nonth period prior to
the issuance of the instant citation on Decenber 9, 1980,
respondent had been assessed for three prior violations of
section 77.701 (Tr. 135).

Docket No. WEVA 81-505

Thi s docket concerns eight citations served on the
respondent during Novenber and Decenber 1980, charging the
respondent with five violations of mandatory safety 30 CFR
77.506, and one violation of sections 75.302-1, 75.301, and
77.701. One citation was issued pursuant to section 104(d)(1) of
the Act, and seven were section 104(d) (1) "significant and
substantial unwarrantable failure w thdrawal orders.

I nspector Toler confirmed that he inspected the m ne on
Novenmber 18, 1980, and issued section 104(d)(1) G tation No.
916590, citing a violation of section 75.302-1, because a
ventilation line curtain where m ning was taking place was not
installed for a distance of at |east 10 feet fromthe face (Ex.
P-2). he neasured the distance in question and found that the
curtain was approximately 35 feet fromthe face. The m ning
machi ne was in operation and m ne managenent shoul d have been
aware of the condition (Tr. 38-42).

M. Toler believed that the conditions were hazardous
because the whether was cold, the mne was extrenely dusty, and
it has a history of nethane. There was a |ikelihood of an
expl osi on, and seven people working at the face woul d have been
affected by the hazard (Tr. 42).

On cross exam nation, M. Toler conceded that there had
never been a fire or explosion at the mne, but that the presence
of met hane has been confirmed by test analysis of air sanples
taken in the mine. He also confirned that there was an excessive
anmount of dust suspended in the atnosphere on the day in
guestion, and that the ventilation requirenments of the approved
pl an were viol ated. The purpose of maintaining the curtain 10
feet fromthe face is to sweep away noxi ous gases and dust from
the face area (Tr. 43-49). Abatenent was achieved within 15
m nutes and the curtain was extended to the required distance
toward the face (Tr. 50).

I nspector Toler confirmed that he al so i ssued withdrawal
order 916591 on Novenber 18, 1980, citing a violation of section
75.301 (Ex. P-3). He did so after determning that the face
ventilation in the No.1 room 014 No. 1 section where a
conti nuous m ner was operating
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and m ning coal was inadequate. The ventilation was nmeasured with
an anenoneter and snoke tube and no neasurenent could be nmade as
there was no novenent of the snoke, and .2 percent nethane was
present at the last roof bolt fromthe working face. Section
75.301 requires 3,000 cubic feet of air a mnute at the end of
the ventilation curtain (Tr. 50-52).

M. Toler stated that Don Davis was operating the mning
machi ne, and since he was part of nine managenment, he shoul d have
been aware of the ventilation plan requirenments. Lack of
ventilation presented a hazard of nethane, and with the dust in
suspensi on, and an explosion was likely (Tr. 53). Seven nen
woul d have been affected, and the violation occurred in the sane
area as Citation No. 916590 (Tr. 54).

On cross-exam nation, M. Toler confirned that the order
i ssued after the curtain was extended the required distance to
abate the previous citation be issued, but the required anount of
ventilation could not be induced. He explained that the curtain
was not wi de enough and he described it as "a piece of junk"
Al t hough he noticed the condition of the curtain as it was being
installed, he said nothing about it and then issued the order
(Tr. 56). However, at the tine, it was his understanding that the
curtain in question was the sane one installed to term nate the
previous citation (Tr. 57).

M. Toler stated that abatenent was achi eved after
additional line curtain was brought into the mne, and repairs
were made to insure that it extended far enough (Tr. 59).

M. Toler confirmed that he issued section 104(d)(1) closure
order No. 918015 on Decenber 9, 1980, citing a violation of
section 77.701, after observing that electrical equipnent in the
m ne preparation plant was not provided with frame grounding for
the nmetal frames and encl osures (Ex. P-4). He closed down all of
the preparation plant electrical equipment. He detected the
violation after discovering that a 440 A C. electric nmotor, wth
t hree phases and a ground did not have the required four wres,
wi th one connected to the ground lug. He also determ ned that
none of the plant notors were grounded because the grounding wire
fromthe tipple to the transfornmer station was not connected, and
t herefore, no groundi ng could be maintained within the plant (Tr.
61-62).

M. Toler believed that the conditions cited shoul d have
been detected through the nonthly electrical inspections. The
conditions constituted a shock hazard, and it was likely that two
men woul d have been exposed to this hazard. The plant is
exposed, and the rain and snow contributed to the hazard (Tr.

64) .

M ne operator Wnford Davis testified that he believed the
groundi ng systemfor the plant in Decenber 1980 was adequate to
precl ude any shock hazards. He attributed the violation to a
| oose neutral wire behind the switch box panelling which was not
visible. The wire was actually
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cut, but all of the equi pnent was grounded through the plant
neutral grounding system |In order to abate the citation

i ndividual wires had to be installed fromeach piece of equi prment
directly to the transfornmer. The tipple was 40 years old, and it
had to be conpletely rewired. He had not been previously advised
by the plant electrician that the grounding was faulty (Tr.
67-71).

On cross-exam nation, M. Davis conceded that he was aware
that nmonthly electrical exam nations nust be nmade and that the
equi prent must be tested. However, he is not an electrician (Tr.
72).

MSHA | nspector Harold E. Newconb confirned that he issued
order of withdrawal nunber 0640145 pursuant to section 104(d) (1)
of the Act on Decenber 10, 1980 (Ex. P-5). He cited a violation
of section 77.506 when he found that proper overload and short
circuit protection was not provided for the No. 12 conductor
cabl e supplying power to the 480 volt A C clean coal elevator
| ocated on the third floor of the plant. The fuses protecting
the circuit were "bridged out" with stranded wire. M. Newconb
stated he has a B.S. degree in electrical engineering and
confirmed that he conducts MSHA el ectrical inspections and
assists in "electrical problens”. He testified that a 25-anp
fuse shoul d have been protecting the circuit, rather than the No.
8 stranded wire, which probably provided 45 or 50 anps. The
original fuse had at some prior time blown out and soneone
replaced it with the stranded wire which is not an approved fuse
device. A proper fuse would have deenergized the circuit in the
event of an overload, but the wire would not and the circuit
could have overheated and nelted the wire (Tr. 74-77).

M. Newconb stated that the nonthly electrical exam nation
shoul d have reveal ed the fuse condition, and he believed the
hazard in question presented a fire or electrical shock hazard to
at | east one enployee, and the prior citation concerning |ack of
proper grounding contributed to the gravity. The condition was
abated after a proper sized fuse was purchased for the circuit in
question (Tr. 78). He also confirmed that M. Davis conceded to
himthat the plant was "electrically run down", but M. Davis
made no statenment that he was aware of the fuse condition in
gquestion. A qualified electrician, however, should know that a
fuse should not be replaced with a piece of wire (Tr. 82), but
anyone coul d have replaced the fuse with a piece of wire (Tr.

83).

M. Newconmb confirnmed that he also issued section 104(d) (1)
orders of withdrawal Nos. 0649146, 0640147, and 0640148 on
Decenmber 10, 1980, citing violations of section 77.506. The
first citation was issued because overload and short circuit
protection was not provided for the No. 12-4 conductor cable
extending fromthe main plant switch box to the 480 volt water
punp and coal belt located on the third floor. The circuit was
protected with a 200-anp fuse, which is not the proper size in
that it was too |large. The second citation issued after he found
the fuses on the power cable supplying 480 volts a.c. to the 10



hor sepower vi brator had been bridged out with a piece of wire. A
20 anp fuse should have been used. The third citation also
i nvol ved a fuse which had been bridged
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out with a piece of wire on the circuit for the No. 10-4
conduct or cabl es supplying power to the 15 H P. circul ati ng punp.
The proper fuse was one of 45 anp capacity, and the stranded wre
did not provide this. Al of the citations were issued for
failure to provide proper overload and short circuit protection
(Exhs. P-6 through P-8; Tr. 86-95). M. Newconb stated that the
cited conditions concerning the fuses should have been di scovered
by m ne managenent through the required nonthly electrical

exam nations. He also believed that the conditions cited
presented shock and fire hazards.

MSHA | nspector M chael L. Deweese confirmed that he is an
el ectrical inspector and that he issued section 104(d) (1)
wi t hdrawal order 876569 on Decenber 10, 1980, at the preparation
plant (Exh. P-9). He cited a violation of section 77.506 after
finding that overload and short circuit protection was not
provided for the No. 12 wire supplying 200 volts to the "gas
punp" | ocated on the second floor. Three 200 anp fuses were
being used to protect the circuit, and 20 anps is the proper
size. The condition was hazardous in that in tinme, the circuit
coul d have becone overl oaded and the resulting short circuit
caused by the failure of the fuses to function properly could
cause a fire or shock hazard to one person. The operator's
monthly el ectrical exam nations should have detected the
condition (Tr. 98-101).

On cross-exam nation, M. Deweese stated that M. Davis
conceded that the plant was in a run-down electrical condition
but he did not state that he knew the cited condition existed.

M. Deweese had no idea how | ong the over-sized fuse had been in
t he equi pnment, and indicated that it would take about a mnute to
change it (Tr. 105).

M ne Operator Wnford Davis testified in regard to the
af orementi oned five electrical citations concerning inproper
overload and short circuit protection. He stated that the
conpany regul arly purchases proper sized fuses for use by its
enpl oyees, and they are kept in the supply house. Fuses are
supposed to be stocked for energencies, and enpl oyees are
instructed to stop by the supply house and obtain themif they
are needed. They were al so authorized to purchase themat a
| ocal hardware store. M. Davis stated further that the tipple
in question was originally constructed in 1941 and 1942, and at
the tine of the MSHA inspection the plant still had the origina
wiring. Practically all of the electrical equipnment in the plant
had to be replaced and noney was in short supply at the tinme.
Fuses were not expensive, but switch boxes and line starters
were. Al of the cited conditions were eventually abated (Tr.
106-109). He had no idea that inproper fuses were being used and
they too were replaced with proper fuses (Tr. 110).

Fact of violations
I conclude and find that MSHA has established by a

preponder ance of the evidence that each of the violations cited
in this docket occurred as charged in the citation and orders



i ssued by the inspectors. The testinony and evi dence adduced by
MSHA supports each of the citations and orders issued, and they
are all AFFI RVED.
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Gavity

I conclude and find that all of the citations in question in
this case were serious violations. The electrical citations
present ed possi bl e shock and fire hazards, and the others
presented mine ventilation hazards as well as possible nethane
and coal dust explosions or fires.

Negl i gence

I conclude and find that the respondent was negligent in
failing to discover the cited conditions which resulted in the
i ssuance of the citation and orders in this case. Properly
conducted pre-shift and on-shift exam nations of the mne, the
plant, and the el ectrical equipnent in question would have
detected the cited conditions.

Good faith conpliance

Although it is true that the respondent corrected and abated
all of the conditions and practices cited in this case, severa
of them al nost i mediately, the fact is that they were abated as
a result of withdrawal orders issued by the inspectors. In any
event, there is no evidence of any |ack of good faith conpliance
on the part of the respondent.

Hi story of prior violations

The solicitor stated that for the 24-nonth period prior to
the i ssuance of the citations in question in this case, the
respondent had one prior assessed violation of section 75.302-1
two for violations of section 75.301, three for violations of
section 77.701, and five for violations of section 77.506.

Docket No. WEVA 81-600

MSHA | nspector Thomas B. Marcumtestified that he issued
section 104(d)(2) withdrawal orders 917653 and 917657, on March 2
and 4, 1981, during a regular inspection of the mne (Ex. P-10
and P-12). The first order cited a violation of section 75. 807,
after he found that an 800 foot |ong voltage cable fromthe No. 6
belt head to the section was not hung or placed properly so as to
protect it from danmage. The cable was a 4,160 volt cable, and it
was |lying on the mne floor alongside the section mantrip
roadway, and it had been run over by the man trip in severa
areas, and he observed the tracks where it had been run over.

The roadway was used daily by the three shifts com ng and goi ng.
He believed that the cable had been on the roadway for sone tine,
and the operator should have been aware of its |ocation because
the roadway is travel ed everyday, and it should have been
detected during any pre-shift exam nation. The cable should have
been hung on J-hooks, and the failure to do so presented a shock
hazard in the event the cable becanme damaged (Tr. 118-122).

On cross-exam nation, M. Marcum confirmed that nost of the
cable in question was properly hung on J-hooks, but that the



cited 800 foot portion was not. The man-trip vehicle is a rubber
tired vehicle, and
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the cable is insulated with arnored-shell steel which provides
hi gh protection. He has never seen this type of cable being
penetrated by running over it with rubber tired equi pnment, and
the cabl e was the main power source comng fromthe outside
underground. He saw no J-hooks installed along the places where
the cabl es was |ying, and no one explained to himwhy it was not
hung properly (Tr. 123-127).

Wth regard to the second order, M. Marcum stated that he
cited a violation of section 75.518 after discovering that the S
& S scoop charger for the 014 Section was not provided with fuse
protection in that a fuse had been bridged out with a wire (Tr.
127). The wire was installed al ongside by a fuse but he did not
know whet her the fuse was bl own out or not. Even if the fuse
were working, the presence of the wire next to it was not proper
because this would permt nore current to flow through the cable.
He believed the condition constituted a shock or burn hazard, and
in the event of a fire or snoke, the nmen on the section would be
exposed to a hazard (Tr. 130-131). M. Marcumstated that the
fuse was | ocated inside the scoop battery charger, and he
di scovered the condition when he found that the charger lid only
had one bolt in it when it should have had three. He opened the
lid and found the condition in question. He conceded that he had
sometines bridged fuses in the same manner when he worked as a
m ner, but that a new fuse was pronptly installed to replace the
defective one (Tr. 132).

Gavity

I conclude and find that both of the citations which have
been affirmed were serious violations. VWile it is true that the
cable in question was constructed of very durable material and
showed no visible signs of damage, it was nonethel ess lying on a
mai n travel way where nmen and equi pnent passed by on a daily basis
com ng and going fromthe mne. Further, the inspector saw
evi dence that the cable had been run over by the mantrip, and
even though it was rubber-tired and not likely to penetrate the
cable, such a practice is serious. As for the bridged fuse on
the scoop charger, this presented a possible shock and fire
hazard because the circuit it served was inproperly protected.

Negl i gence

Both citations resulted fromthe respondent's failure to
t ake reasonable care. The cable was in full view of personne
com ng and going fromthe section, and the fuse condition shoul d
have been detected during the required exanm nations, particularly
since the mssing lid bolts which led to the discovery of the
condition by the inspector were plainly visible.

Good faith conpliance
The cited conditions were abated after the issuance of the

orders, and the respondent denonstrated good faith in achieving
conpl i ance
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Hi story of prior violations

The solicitor indicated that the respondent had three prior
assessed viol ations of section 75.807, and no prior violations of
section 75.518.

Si ze of Business and Effect of Cvil Penalties on the
Respondent's Ability to Remain in Business. (Applicable to al
Docket s) .

The parties have stipulated that the respondent is a smal
m ne operator, and that its annual coal production has been
approxi mately 87,000 tons. Wth regard to the question of
respondent's current financial condition, including the effect of
any civil penalties on its ability to remain in business,
respondent presented the testinony of its owner, and his
testinmony foll ows bel ow

M ne Operator Wnford Davis testified that he began m ning
in 1964, that the Marie No. 1 Mne was initially started in 1971
and since that tine this has been his only active mning
operation. However, the mine ceased to operate on Decenber 29,
1981, and it has not been an actively producing mne since that
time. He testified that during the years prior to 1974, the nm ne
was profitable, and he conceded that his "before taxes" profits
in 1975 was "a little over $1 million", but that since that tinme
the m ne has | ost noney. The profits fromhis operation in 1974
was used to purchase new equi prent and to go expand the mne
Income for the mine, in terns of profit, for the years 1975 and
1976, was approximately $300, 000, before taxes, but the mne | ost
$11,000 in 1977.

M. Davis testified that during the period April through
Sept ember 1977, the mine was fl ooded, and no coal was produced.
A UMM strike in Novenber 1977, also affected coal production
and the strike lasted for about 90 days, or until February of
1978. Al though fl ood insurance covered the |arger portion of
fl ood damage, he still |ost approximately $1.8 mllion in
equi prent, and had to borrow noney to replace it. The m ne was
al so fl ooded on three occasions during 1978 and 1979, and that
curtailed coal production even further. In addition, while his
mne is not a union mne, organizing efforts to unionize the mne
during Novenber 1980, resulted in vandalism and other trouble
whi ch also cut into his production. He absorbed the flood | osses
for 1979 because he was afraid to file further flood clains for
fear that his insurance woul d be cancelled, and the m ne was down
for three nonths while the water was punped out. As a result of
all of these events, his |osses for each of the years 1978 and
1979 was a half-a-mllion dollars per year. Sinilar |osses were
encountered in 1980 because of |abor problens.

M. Davis identified his accounting firmand stated that he
has retained them since 1974 to keep his books. Wrk is being
performed on the report ending April 30, 1981, but he indicated
that he has been unable to pay the firmfor their accounting work
since prior to April 1981, and the firmhas filed for an



extension for himto pay his taxes for the year 1981. Since he
has been unable to pay his accountant, he felt that
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he could not call upon himto testify in these proceedings. M.
Davi s indicated that he presently owes noney to a great nunber of
creditors, and sonme of these debts are as old as 1978. Since he
has been in business for sonme 22 years, his creditors are being
patient with him but some have been creditors since 1974. He
produced a copy of his accountant's report, dated April 30, 1981
and it is a part of the record.

Referring to his latest accountant's report, M. Davis
testified that the net |oss for the Davis Coal Company for the
first four nonths of 1981 was $191, 443. 47, and while he has not
been provided with additional accountant's reports for the
subsequent periods, he estinmated his conpany's | osses as $500, 000
for the cal endar year 1981, and he | ost approximtely the sane
amount for each of the years during 1978 through 1980. Current
i ndebt edness for the conpany is bewteen $2.3 and $2.5 mllion
and the largest creditor is the Pikeville National Bank and Trust
Conpany, which holds a note for an original amount of $750, 000,
for a loan nade in 1979. The bal ance due is now $700,000, and it
was reduced by $50, 000 through the sale by the bank of a
conti nuous m ni ng machi ne which it had repossessed. The proceeds
fromthe sale of this machine were applied by the bank to reduce
his current note liability. 1In addition, he testified that
within the [ ast year additional equi prent had been renoved from
the mne and sold to settle conpany debts. The Ingersoll-Rand
Conpany repossessed two mining machi nes, three shuttle cars, a
scoop, and a feeder, all of which they intend to sell at public
auction to settle a debt of $360,000 which his company owes to
that company. Al of this equipnent is |ocated at
I ngersol | -Rand's storage area in Charleston, and he no | onger has
it. 1In addition, the Long-Airdox Conpany nmet with himtwo weeks
ago in an attenpt to work out an agreenent for payment of severa
roof bolters.

M. Davis stated that the nmine ceased operation in Decenber
1981 because he ran out of noney, and he had no funds to pay his
m ners. Since that tinme the conpany has generated no i ncone, and
the only bank account it has is a checking account with the
Pi kevill e Trust Conpany, and it has a deficit balance. During
the year 1981, and part of 1982, he has put over $100,000 of his
own personal noney into the conpany in an attenpt to keep the
conpany going. Neither he nor his famly have received any
i ncome fromthe conpany during 1982, but he still works for the
conpany in an attenpt to settle his debts or negotiate additiona
capital to begin m ning again.

Referring to his personal inconme tax statements whi ch he had
with him M. Davis testified that for the year 1980 he and his
wi fe had a joint gross income of $79,632, and for the year 1981
their joint gross income was $51,373. He still pays the phone
bill fromhis own funds for the phone at the mne office, and
ot her than two ni ght watchmen which he personally pays to protect
t he equi pnent still in the mne, the conpany has no ot her
enpl oyees. He pays the watchnmen a conbined sal ary of $250 a week
fromhis own personal funds, and while he wi shes to get back into
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the m ni ng business, he indicated that he cannot do this until he
recei ves additional capital and pays off his debts. As an
exanpl e, he indicated that he would need an i medi ate $15, 000
just to have the power turned on at the mne by the local utility
conpany. He still owes the conpany $5,000 for past utility
bills, and they require an additional $10,000 as a deposit before
the power is turned on again. |In addition, he would al so have to
pay back taxes anounting to $18,000, and royalties, which are in
arrears, before he can think about resum ng m ning.

M. Davis stated that while he has contenplated filing for
bankruptcy, he has tried to avoid it up to this tinme, and that he
requi res approximately $100,000 to start up mning again. He al so
alluded to the fact that he could not nake anynore nonthly
paynments of $4000 to $5000 which he had been nmaking to MSHA to
sati sfy past assessed violations, and that as a result, the
solicitor's Arlington, Virginia, office instituted collection
proceedi ngs against himw thin the past year and attached coa
shi pments he had nmade to the United Coal Conpany to coll ect
$8500.

Concedi ng that the total amount of civil penalties initially
assessed by MSHA in the instant dockets anmounts to approximtely
$32,773, M. Davis stated that he recogni zes his obligation to
pay the penalties. However, he indicated that he has no assets
or cash to pay these penalties, and if he were forced to pay, it
woul d certainly have an adverse affect on his ability to stay in
busi ness. As for any suggestion that he sell some of his
equi prent to pay these assessnents, he indicated that the liens
hel d by the bank, as well as his state tax liabilities and debts,
woul d absorb any revenue resulting fromthe sale of his
equi prent. M. Davis stated that when the m ne was produci ng,

t hey worked five days a week on two production shifts and one
mai nt enance shift, and that he normally enpl oyed 50 m ners.
However, they are no | onger working at the mne (Tr. 164-195).

On cross-exam nation, M. David confirned that there are
still several closure orders outstanding on the mne. He
estimated the current value of the equipnent still at the mne as
$500, 000, and indicated that he has no interests in any other
coal conpanies. Al though Davis Coal Conpany owns the stock of a
tipple facility (Burning Springs Collieres) where he used to | oad
his coal, it is no longer operating and it is in fact the tipple
pl ant i mreidately connected to the Marie No. 1 Mne. It is the
same tipple plant where sonme of the citations in these
proceedi ngs were served. M. Davis confirmed that he has been
attenpting to negotiate with a bank for |loans to resune active
m ning. He has no other enploynents, but may consider going into
t he buil ding contracting busi ness, but he does not contenplate
goi ng back into the coal m ning business unless he can raise the
necessary capital

Di scussi on

| agree with the holding of the former Interior Board of
M ne Qperations in the case of Robert G Lawson Coal Conpany, 1



| BVA 115, 117-118 (1972), a case deci ded under the 1969 Coal Act,
where it was held that:
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respe
oper a
| BVA
have
cases

W view the provisions of section 109(a)(1) as
mani festing an intent by Congress to require a bal ancing
process in arriving at an appropriate penalty to be
assessed in any given case. Application of the criteria
of section 109(a)(1l) requires weighing the inportance
of inposing pecuniary penalties, as a neasure of deterring
i nsufficient concern for the health and safety of m ners,
agai nst other deterrents specified in the act, such as
cl osure orders. The anobunt of a nonetary penalty inposed
shoul d be sufficiently high to deter any laxity of
vigilance on the part of an operator to keep his mne
in conpliance with the Act. In our view, however,
the inmposition of a penalty which would cripple an
operator's ability to continue his production of
coal w thout a counter-balancing benefit to the safety
of miners would not be appropriate.

* * % % * * % * * * *

We do not view the civil penalty assessnent procedure
as a tool to force closure of mnes; we |ook upon it as
an auxiliary tool to bring about conpliance.

* * *x % * * % * * * *

W bel i eve Congress intended a bal anced consi deration
of all statutory factors, including the size of mne
and the ability to remain in business, to permt
assessnments which would be equitable and just in al
situations but which would not have the effect of
drastically curtailing coal production or enploynent of
mners to the ultimate detrinent of the public
i nterest.

* * *x % * * % * * * *

VWhere nunerous violations are found and cited during a
tour of inspection, the aggregate anount of the
proposed assessnents, even though each separate
violati on may be assessed at a nominal value, may be an
anount beyond the operator's ability to pay, and thus,
for no other reason than this, may be unreasonable. In
such cases it is incunbent upon an Exami ner and this
Board to |l ook at the total anopunt and inpact of the
nmonetary penalty in arriving at a fair assessment.

The former Board followed its Lawson Coal reasoning with

ct to the question of the effect of civil penalties on snal

tors in two subsequent decisions, Newsone Brothers, Inc., 1
190 (1972), and Hall Coal Conpany, 1 IBMA 175 (1972). |

applied this rationale on several occasions in deciding
under the 1977 M ne Act, and these
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deci si ons have since becone finalized as Conm ssion deci sions.
See: MBHA v. Fire Creek Coal Conpany, Docket BARB 79-3-P, etc.
April 5, 1979; MSHA v. G & M Coal Conpany, Dockets SE 79-128 and
Dockets SE 81-12, etc., Novenber 19, 1980 and April 7, 1981.

It is no secret to anyone that the Davis Coal Company has
been the subject of several prior civil penalty proceedings
before this Comm ssion and its Adm nistrative Law Judges. In
MSHA v. Davis Coal Conpany, Docket Nos. 78-627-P, etc., March 7,
1980, the Conmission, on its own notion, directed review of ten
cases in which the judge had approved settlenents pursuant to
Rul e 2700.30(c). Upon review of the record in those cases, the
Conmi ssi on, over the vigorous di ssent of Conm ssioner Lawson,
found no basis to conclude that the judges erred in approving the
settlenents, and their decisions were all affirned.

Conmi ssi oner Lawson's displeasure with the affirmance of the
settlenents in question was based on his belief that the approval
of a 90% reduction fromthe original civil penalties was
unsupported by any credi bl e evidence that Davis Coal Conpany was
in such "dire" financial condition as to justify such drastic
penal ty reductions. Conm ssioner Lawson observed that the conpany
was not required to come forward with any current financial
information to determ ne what, if any, effect the paynment of the
initially proposed civil penalties would have had on Davis'
ability to continue in business. Scrutinizing Davis' business
operations for a tinme span covering 1976 to 1979, Conm ssi oner
Lawson took particular note of the fact that Davis was not
required to file audited financial statenments or tax returns to
est abl i sh any business | osses supporting a finding that the
conpany could not afford to pay the full assessnment anounts. He
was al so disturbed with the asserted | ack of consideration given
to Davis' history of prior violations and the |Iack of any
di scussion dealing with the deterrent effect of those violations.

I am not unm ndful of Conm ssioner Lawson's concerns with
respect to the issues raised in his dissent in the previous Davis
cases. However, as the presiding Judge in the cases before ne
for decision, | amconstrained to apply the facts of record in
any decisions that | render in connection with these cases,
including the civil penalty assessnents that are warranted on the
basis of those facts. Just as Conmi ssioner Lawson saw fit to
di ssent in the previous cases, and just as the other Judges
adj udi cated their cases on the basis of the evidence and facts
presented to them during the course of the hearings, so too wll
| decide these cases.

It should be noted at the outset that the instant cases do
not concern settlenent proposals agreed to by the parties. In
nost of these cases, respondent Davis Coal Conpany does not
contest the fact of violations, and has admitted that the
violations occurred. 1In three of the dockets, testinmony was
presented by both sides, and all of the citations in those cases
have been affirned. Further, in each of the cases, either the
parties have stipulated to all of the statutory criteria found in
section 110(i), except for the effect of the penalties on the



respondent's ability to remain in business, or | have nade
findings on these issues. The crucial question presented in al
of these dockets is the appropriate civil penalties which
shoul d assess in these dockets, taking into account all of the
statutory criteria found in the Act, and in particular the
guestion of respondent's ability to pay and the effect of any
civil penalties onits ability to remain in business.
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It is clear that in litigated civil penalty proceedings, the
determ nati on of appropriate civil penalty assessnents for proven
violations is made on a de novo basis by the presiding judge and
he is not bound by any assessnment nethod of conputation utilized
by MSHA' s Assessment O fice, Boggs Construction Conpany, 6 |BNA
145 (1976); Associated Drilling Conpany, 6 |IBMA 217 (1976); Gay
Coal Conpany, 7 IBMA 245 (1977); MsSHA v. Consolidated Coa
Conmpany, VINC 77-132-P, |IBMA 78-3, decided by the Comm ssion on
January 22, 1980.

In the instant proceedings, the initial civil penalty
assessnments whi ch appear as part of the petitioner's initial
pl eadi ngs and civil penalty proposals in the formof "assessnent
wor ksheet s" as exhibits to the proposals, reflect proposed
penalty amounts derived fromeither the application of "points”
assessed for each of the statutory criteria set out in section
110(i) of the Act, or froma "special assessnent” nmade pursuant
to Part 100, Title 30, Code of Federal Regulations. It is clear
that I amnot bound by those initial assessnments, and the
assessnments which | have i nposed have been nmade after ful
di sclosure of all of the facts, and in particul ar evi dence
concerning the respondent's present financial condition and
ability to pay.

The record adduced in this case reflects that the mne has
been cl osed since Decenber 1981, and is no |longer actively

produci ng coal. Petitioner's counsel confirned the fact that the
mne is in a "B' status, which neans that MSHA considers that it
is active but not producing coal. Counsel also indicated that

since the mne has been cl osed, MSHA i nspectors are no | onger

i nspecting the mne, no production is going on, and far as MSHA
knows, no power has been supplied to the mne since its closure
(Tr. 159-160).

Wth regard to the respondent's financial condition, the
unrebutted testinmony of the m ne operator reflects that the Davis
Coal Conpany is on the brink of bankruptcy, that it is presently
unable to resune active coal production because of the | ack of
additional capital, that some of its mne equi prent has been
repossessed and sold at auction to satisfy debts, that sone
equi prent has been attached and renoved fromthe m ne by another
creditor and is awaiting sale to satisfy debts, and that the
remai ni ng equi pnent at the mne is encunbered by a personal note
in excess of $500,000 held by a bank which advanced the noney to
purchase it. |In addition, with the exception of two security
guards being paid personally by the nmne ower to protect the
equi prent fromtheft and vandalism no one is working at the mne
and the normal workforce of 50 miners have all been laid off
since the mne closed approxi mately seven nont hs ago. a2

After careful review of all of the evidence adduced in these
proceedi ngs, | conclude and find that the inposition of the ful
amount of the initial civil penalty assessments proposed by MSHA
in these dockets, totalling approximately $32, 773, would have a
further adverse inpact on the respondent's ability to reopen the
m ne and continue its coal mning business. Considering the fact



that the respondent is a small operator and is in serious
financial difficulties, as attested to by the unrebutted credible



~1196

evi dence adduced herein, | find that the inposition of the
proposed civil penalties would, in the aggregate, jeopardize
respondent's ability to remain in business. Wile it may be
argued that, in view of the respondent's past history of

vi ol ati ons, which reflects a poor conpliance record, as well as a
mar gi nal mning operation, it would be better off for the
respondent to stay out of the coal mning business, that is a
judgrment that | prefer not to make. As the principal enforcer of
the Act and its mandatory safety and health standards, the
petitioner has at its disposal anple statutory authority through
t he enforcenent process to assure future conpliance should the
respondent resune production, or in the alternative, to close the
m ne down for non-conpliance.

In addition to the financial condition of the respondent,
and aside fromthe seriousness of sonme of the conditions or
practices cited as violations in these dockets, | take particul ar
note of the fact that none of the violations issued in these
proceedings resulted in any injuries to mners; nor did they
result in any mne fires or accidents (Tr. 146). In addition, in
all instances, the respondent pronptly corrected the conditions
or practices cited, and in many cases respondent denonstrated
extraordi nary conpliance by i mediately correcting the conditions
brought to its attention by the inspectors. Under the
circunstances, | have al so considered these factors, in addition
to the effect of the initial assessnents on the respondent's
busi ness, in assessing civil penalties for all of the violations
whi ch have been affirned.

Penal ty Assessnents
In view of the foregoing findings and concl usi ons,

respondent is assessed civil penalties for the violations which
have been established as foll ows:

WEVA 80- 565

Citation No. Dat e 30 CFR Section Assessnent
0677798 11/ 30/ 79 75.517 $25
0677799 11/ 30/ 79 75. 517 25
0677861 12/ 04/ 79 75. 313 25
0677862 12/ 04/ 79 75. 1722 15
0677863 12/ 04/ 79 75. 1722 50
0677865 12/ 06/ 79 75. 316 50
0673584 3/ 06/ 80 75. 512 25
0673585 3/ 06/ 80 75.300-4(a) 30
0673591 3/ 11/ 80 75. 703 20
0673592 3/ 11/ 80 75. 200 60
0673593 3/ 17/ 80 75. 512 60
0673594 3/ 17/ 80 75. 508 25
0673596 3/ 17/ 80 77.502-2 25
0673597 3/ 17/ 80 77.800-2 25

$460
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VEVA 81-106

Citation No.

910981
910982
910983
910984
910985
910986
910987
910988
910989
910990
910991
910992
910993
910994
910995
911000

WEVA 81- 249
Citation No.
910319
911658
911659
911660

912802
912803

WEVA 81-377
Citation No.
9915076
9915114

9915115
9915116

VEVA 81-429

Citation No.

912726

VEVA 81-449

Citation No.

Dat e

4/ 24/ 80
4/ 24/ 80
4/ 24/ 80
4/ 25/ 80
4/ 28/ 80
4/ 28/ 80
4/ 28/ 80
4/ 28/ 80
4/ 28/ 80
4/ 30/ 80
4/ 30/ 80
4/ 30/ 80
4/ 30/ 80
4/ 30/ 80
4/ 30/ 80
5/ 08/ 80

Dat e

7/ 23/ 80
7/ 23/ 80
7/ 23/ 80
7/ 23/ 80
7/ 30/ 80
7/ 30/ 80

Dat e
1/ 15/ 81
2/ 17/ 81

2/ 17/ 81
2/ 17/ 81

Dat e

11/ 06/ 80

Dat e

30 CFR

75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
7.

30 CFR Section

75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.

30 CFR

70.
70.
70.
70.

30 CFR

75.

30 CFR

Secti on

324
305
303
1704
515
701
400
1722(a)
503
503
1107
503
605
604
1107
400( a)

316
400
403
313
400
1722(b)

Section
207(a)
207(a)

207( a)
207( a)

Section

205

Section

Assessnent

$15
15
15
10
10
20
50
20
20
20
15
15
30
25
20
40

$340

Assessnent

$30
20
25
15
30
40

$160

Assessnent
$20
15
15
15

$65

Assessnent

$30

Assessnent



918334

9915203
9915266
9915267
9915268

2/ 17/ 81
3/17/81
4/ 13/ 81
4/ 13/ 81
4/ 13/ 81

75. 503
70. 207(a)
70. 208( a)
70. 208( a)
70. 208( a)

$25
35
20
20
20
$120
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WEVA 81- 457

Citation No. Dat e 30 CFR
916648 11/ 13/ 80 75.
916581 11/ 18/ 80 75.
916582 11/ 18/ 80 75.
916583 11/ 18/ 80 75.
916584 11/ 18/ 80 75.
916585 11/ 18/ 80 77.
916586 11/ 18/ 80 77.
916588 11/ 18/ 80 75.
916589 11/ 18/ 80 75.
916592 11/ 19/ 80 75.
916593 11/ 20/ 80 75.
916594 11/ 20/ 80 75.
916596 11/ 24/ 80 75.
916597 11/ 25/ 80 75.
916599 11/ 26/ 80 75.
916600 11/ 26/ 80 75.
918001 11/ 26/ 80 75.
918002 11/ 26/ 80 75.
918003 12/ 01/ 80 75.
918005 12/ 01/ 80 75.
WEVA 81-458

Citation No. Dat e 30 CFR
918004 12/ 02/ 80 75.
918006 12/ 02/ 80 75.
918007 12/ 02/ 80 75.
918008 12/ 03/ 80 75.
918009 12/ 04/ 80 75.
876570 12/ 10/ 80 77.
912395 1/ 06/ 81 75.
912396 1/ 06/ 81 75.
910293 1/ 22/ 81 75.
918321 2/ 12/ 81 77.
918322 2/ 12/ 81 77.
918323 2/ 12/ 81 77.
918324 2/ 12/ 81 75.
918325 2/ 12/ 81 75.
918326 2/ 12/ 81 75.
918327 2/ 12/ 81 77.
918328 2/ 12/ 81 77
918329 2/ 12/ 81 77.
918331 2/ 12/ 81 77.
917621 2/ 17/ 81 75.

Secti on

323
512
1103-8 (b)
305

515

504

1104

200

200

901( a)
1103

400

200

400

1103

1103

1103
1101-3
1101-3
1101-3

Secti on

1101-3
1725

400

701

316

505

316

1200
1725( a)
205( b)
208(e)

504

512
1400- 4
1106- 16( c)
502

.509( c)

504
1104
400

Assessnent

$15
20
20
20
15
20
30
35
40
40
25
25
25
35
30
30
30
20
30
30

$535

Assessnent

$60
75
50
25
75
50
20
20
80
30
25
30
15
15
15
15
20
45
25
25

$715
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WEVA 81-459

Citation No. Dat e 30 CFR
917622 2/ 17/ 81 75.
917623 2/ 17/ 81 75.
918335 2/ 17/ 81 75.
918336 2/ 17/ 81 75.
918337 2/ 17/ 81 75.
918338 2/ 17/ 81 75.
918339 2/ 17/ 81 75.
918340 2/ 17/ 81 75.
917627 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917628 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917629 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917630 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917631 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917632 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917633 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917634 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917635 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917636 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917637 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917638 2/ 24/ 81 75.
WEVA 81-460

Citation No. Dat e 30 CFR
917639 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917640 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917641 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917643 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917644 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917645 2/ 24/ 81 75.
917646 2/ 27/ 81 75.
917649 2/ 27/ 81 75.
917650 2/ 27/ 81 75.
917651 2/ 27/ 81 75.
917652 2/ 27/ 81 75.
917654 3/ 02/ 81 75.
917655 3/ 02/ 81 75.
917656 3/ 02/ 81 75.
917658 3/ 04/ 81 75.
917659 3/ 04/ 81 75.
917660 3/ 04/ 81 75.
917741 3/ 04/ 81 75.
917742 3/ 04/ 81 75.
WEVA 81-461

Citation No. DATE 30 CFR

Secti on

313
503

400

400

503

503

313

503

515
1725( a)
904

400

503
1107- 16( b)
523-2 (c)
1725( a)
503

904

1725( a)
400

Secti on

514
1722(a)
1722(a)
904
1725( a)
1105

326

516

516

515

807

807

516

514
1100- 2( e)
515
1100- 2( e)
515

515

Section

Assessnent

$10
20
30
30
15
15
15
15
15
20
60
100
30
20
15
15
10
50
20
25

$530

Assessnent

$35
40
30
25
20
30
25
20
20
10
25
20
25
30
20
25
20
30
30

$ 480

Assessnent



917743 3/ 04/ 81 75.1725( a) $ 20
917744 3/ 05/ 81 75.1725(a) 20
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917745
917746
917747
917748
917749
917750
917751
917752
917754
917755
917756
917757
917758
917759
917760
917761
917762

WEVA 81-462
Citation No.
917763
917764
917765
917766

917767
917768

VEVA 81-506

Citation No.

916587
918330

VEVA 81-601

Citation No.

911888

VEVA 82- 25

Citation No.

918561
918566

3/ 05/ 81
3/ 05/ 81
3/ 05/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81

Dat e
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81
3/ 06/ 81

3/ 06/ 81
3/17/81

Dat e

11/18/ 80
2/ 12/ 81

Dat e

6/ 02/ 81

Dat e

5/ 11/ 81
6/ 24/ 81

75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.

30 CFR

75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
7.

30 CFR

7.
7.

30 CFR

75.

30 CFR

75
75

515
1722(a)

515

516

516- 2(c)

517

1722(a)

515

807

200

515

516- 2(c)

807
1100-2(e) (1)
1722(a)
1722(a)

515

Secti on

400
400
515
1722(a)
200
1605( 1)

Section

506
1109( a)

Section

316

Section

. 403
. 400

$20
25
25
15
15
15
75
65
20
60
20
25
25
25
20
60
25

$575

Assessnent
$ 30
30
15
45

40
35

$ 195

Assessnent

$ 35
25

$ 60

Assessnent

$ 15

Assessnent

$ 25
65
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918567
918568
918570
9915346
9915347
9915348

VEVA 82-24

Citation No.

918010
918011
918012
918013

VEVA 81-504

Citation No.

918017

VEVA 81-505

Citation No.

916590
916591
918015
0640145
0640146
0640147
0640148
876569

VEVA 81- 600

Citation No.

0917653
0917657

6/ 24/ 81
7/ 07/ 81
7/ 09/ 81
8/ 13/ 81
8/ 13/ 81
8/ 13/ 81

Dat e

12/ 08/ 80
12/ 08/ 80
12/ 08/ 80
12/ 09/ 80

Dat e

12/ 9/ 80

Dat e

11/18/ 80
11/ 18/ 80
12/ 09/ 80
12/ 10/ 80
12/ 10/ 80
12/ 10/ 80
12/ 10/ 80
12/ 10/ 80

Dat e

3/ 02/ 81
3/ 04/ 81

75.
75.

77

30 CFR

75.
75.
75.
7.

516
1725( a)

. 205( a)
70.
70.
70.

208( a)
208( a)
208( a)

Secti on

1101- 23( a)
1713
523
207

30 CFR Section

7.

30 CFR

75.
75.
7.
7.
7.
7.
7.
7.

30 CFR

75.
75.

701

Section

302-1
301
701
506
506
506
506
506

Secti on

807
518

TOTAL

$20
20
15
10
10
10

$ 175

Assessnent

$20
15
60
15

$ 110

Assessnent

$ 250

Assessnent

$ 95
100
85
90
90
95
95
95

$ 745

Assessnent

$ 85
95

$ 180

$ 5740
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CORDER

Citation No. 917642, February 24, 1981 (Docket WEVA 81-460),
was vacated by MSHA prior to the filing of its civil penalty
proposals, and it is therefore DISM SSED (Tr. 151-152).

Citation No. 917753, March 6, 1981 (Docket WEVA 81-461), was
al so vacated by MSHA prior to the filing of the civil penalty
proposals, and it is also DISM SSED (Tr. 153; Exh. A).

Respondent 1S ORDERED to pay the civil penalties assessed by
ne in these dockets, in the anmpunts shown above, totalling $5740,
within thirty (30) days of the date of these decisions, and upon
recei pt of paynent by the petitioner, these proceedings are
DI SM SSED.

Ceorge A. Koutras
Admi ni strative Law Judge

~FOOTNOTE- ONE

al. Gtations 916581, 916582, 916583, 916585, 916586,
916588, 916589, 916592, 916594, 916596, and 916648.
~FOOTNOTE- TWO

a2. On June 16, 1982, petitioner's counsel advised ne that
the respondent has in fact now filed for bankruptcy.



